

CABINET

DRAFT MINUTES of a MEETING held in THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN on Tuesday, 17 May 2016.

Cllr Keith Humphries Cabinet Member for Health (including Public Health) and

Adult Social Care

Cllr Laura Mayes Cabinet Member for Children's Services

Cllr Fleur de Rhé- Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills,

Philipe Strategic Transport and Strategic Property

Cllr Baroness Scott of B Leader of the Council

ybrook OBE

Cllr Jonathon Seed Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure, Libraries and

Flooding

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development

Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and

Waste

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities,

Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance

Cllr Stuart Wheeler Cabinet Member for Hubs, Heritage and Arts, Governance

and Support Services

Cllr Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

Also in Attendance: Cllr Glenis Ansell, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr

Richard Gamble, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Simon Killane, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Bill Moss, Cllr

Horace Prickett and Cllr Jerry Wickham

Key Decisions Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council's Forward Work Plan are shown as

57 Apologies

All members were present.

58 Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 2016 were presented.

Resolved

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 2016

59 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

60 Leader's announcements

The Leader stated that she had asked Democratic Services to co-ordinate any donations made in memory of former Wiltshire Councillor Jeff Osborn as discussed with Cllr Glenis Ansell before the meeting.

61 Public participation and Questions from Councillors

The Leader drew the meeting's attention to the questions and responses circulated in the agenda supplement, and invited those who had submitted questions to address the committee.

(a) Question from Councillor Jon Hubbard – Five Year Land Supply

In response to a supplementary question from Councillor Hubbard, Councillor Sturgis stated that although the 5 year land supply situation can change quite rapidly, the response given in writing was correct. He did, however, explain that the final sentence in the response should be corrected to read: 'In these circumstances, the benefits should significantly and demonstrably outweigh the adverse impacts.'

Councillor Sturgis went on to state that housing numbers designated to individual communities were indicative required, and that whilst local plans, neighbourhood plans and the core strategy were important documents for communities to shape their local areas, the Secretary of State's and Inspector's decisions show that speculative developments still had to be judged on their own merits to determine whether they promote sustainable development.

(b) Question from Adrienne Westbrook - Multi Use Games Area in King George V Park

In response to a supplementary question from Councillor Westbrook, Councillor Sturgis stated that the planning application stage gave the opportunity for the Town Council to make comments. The Council had spoken to Fields in Trust prior to the application as their prior consent was required.

Furthermore, the Leader added that she would ask officers to investigate what communication was undertaken with the Local Member with a view to seeing if processes could be improved.

62 Re-commissioning Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)

Councillor Laura Mayes, Cabinet Member for Children's Services, presented the report which sought approval to work with Wiltshire CCG to recommission

a new integrated service delivery model for primary and specialist CAMHS in order to meet the changing needs of children and young people. A number of options for commissioning this service were set out in the report and a recommendation provided on the best option to secure the service required.

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: that Mental health had been identified as a top priority by representatives from the local Youth Parliament; how the proposed procurement process differed from the previous model; the limited number of suppliers in the market; how procurement specialists in the CCG and the Council were working together; the opportunity to provide an holistic service for children and young people; and the increase in demand for services and the changing needs of children and young people;.

In response to a request from the Leader, it was agreed to amend recommendation ii) so that officers be asked to investigate the possibility of Wiltshire Council taking a joint-lead procurer role for the new service.

Following concerns raised by Councillor Glenis Ansell, Carolyn Godfrey clarified that the preferred bidder model proposed was a commonly used procurement process and would still allow for the appropriate due diligence activity to be undertaken.

Resolved

- i. To agree that the Council should work with the Wiltshire CCG to recommission a new integrated service delivery model for primary and specialist CAMHS to meet the needs of children and young people. To include aligning Wiltshire Council funding for Primary CAMHS with Wiltshire CCG funding for specialist CAMHS;
- ii. That officers be asked to investigate whether it would be practicable for Wiltshire Council to become a joint lead commissioner for the new service:
- iii. To approve the commissioning approach already agreed by the Wiltshire CCG Governing Body to test the market to establish if undertaking a most capable provider process is the appropriate route to secure the service required (option 3). To include authorisation from Cabinet to undertake a tender process if required, in accordance with the 'light touch' regime as detailed within the Public Contract Regulations (option 2). This shall be led by the Wiltshire CCG with the Council as an associate; and

iv. To delegate approval of the procurement process, including the development a revised service specification and decision on award of contract to the Corporate Director in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children's Services in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance, Cabinet Member for Public Health and the Solicitor of the Council.

Reason for Decision:

The local CCG transformation plan for children and young people's mental health and wellbeing sets out the overall joint strategic direction, clear vision and principles for delivering a child and youth mental health system that can meet the changing needs of children and young people in Wiltshire, for example, the increase in eating disorders and self-harming behaviour. The plan has been developed in partnership with a range of stakeholders from across education, health and social care and reflects the needs and views of children, young people and parents/carers.

In order to deliver the plan effectively (which has been agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board) and ensure the continued provision of a safe and effective Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service, the Council needs to work together with Wiltshire CCG to set out a new service delivery model. This requires the Council to align its resources with the CCG and the transformation plan's strategic objectives.

This report evaluates options for commissioning a new integrated primary and specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service. In doing so, it recommends that the Council approves the decision already made by the Wiltshire CCG to test the market to establish if undertaking a most capable provider process is the appropriate route. The key argument in favour of this option is that the market for the provision of CAMHS is understood to be limited regionally.

63 School Loans

Councillor Laura Mayes, Cabinet Member for Children's Services, presented a report which provided an update on the progress of maintained schools converting to academies and the potential role of the Local Authority in converting a current budget deficit into a formal loan to a maintained school, to facilitate their transition to become an academy.

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: that the proposed approach sought to reduce the financial risks to the authority; how the Council would assure itself that academies were able to meet the requirements of a loan; that the proposals should be cost-neutral for the Council; and that the proposals could encourage better financial management amongst relevant schools.

Resolved

- 1. To note the current position of Wiltshire schools converting to academies
- 2. To delegate powers to the Associate Director, Finance to consider awarding loans to maintained schools to facilitate their conversion to become an academy.
- 3. To authorise the Associate Director, Finance, to enter into appropriate formal arrangements for the award of a loan, where the maintained school currently is in a financial deficit position with the Local Authority and has an agreed recovery plan that extends beyond the standard 3-5 year recovery period. In all cases, loans will only be made following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children's Services, Cabinet Member for Finance, Associate Director Law and Governance, Associate Director Commissioning Performance and School Effectiveness and in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reason for Decision:

Due to Wiltshire being a poorly funded authority for school funding, combined with the impact of the current demographics, a small number of Wiltshire schools are in a financial budget deficit position. All deficits are being managed in conjunction with the LA.

Budget deficits have proved a barrier to those schools converting to become an academy, and leave the financial risk of the deficit with the local authority. The purpose of this report is to provide members with background information and seek a decision regarding the conversion of these budget deficits into a formal loan.

64 **Business Continuity Plan**

Councillor Keith Humphries, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, presented a report which provided Cabinet with feedback on progress with the business continuity programme, and asked for the measures outlined in the report to be approved.

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: how the programme would be progressed; how any disruptions would be managed; the support and advice available to businesses; that, on average, a fifth of businesses would suffer major disruptions in any year; the impact of disruptions on future trading; and the work undertaken with partners in the local resilience forum.

Resolved

- 1. To note the report.
- 2. That the measures being taken to ensure effective business continuity as outlined in the report be approved.

Reason for Decision:

To keep the Cabinet appraised of plans.

65 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting: 9.30 - 10.31 am)

These decisions were published on the 19 May 2016 and will come into force on 27 May 2016

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Yamina Rhouati, of Democratic Services, direct line 01225 718024 or e-mail Yamina.Rhouati@wiltshire.gov.uk Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115